BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) :U74999KA2016PLC095986
Regd. Off.: 29th & 30th Floor, World Trade Center,
Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 055
Phone : +91 - 080 - 4137 9200 Fax : +91 - 080 - 2221 0784

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Third Annual General Meeting of Brigade Hotel Ventures
Limited will be held at held at Monday, 12™ August, 2019 at 11.30 am. at the Board Room, 30™
Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram -
Rajajinagar, Bangalore- 560055 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Audited Profit & Loss
Account for the financial year ended 315" March, 2019 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Vineet
Verma (DIN: 06362115), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire
by rotation."

By order of the Board
For Brigad¢ Hotel Ventures Limited

Place: Bangalore
Date: 23rd April, 2019

: 00191267

Registered Office

29™ & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center
Dr. Rajkumar Road,

Bangalore-560055

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company not less than forty eight hours before this Annual General
Meeting.
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BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LTD.
CIN: U74999KA2016PLC095986
Regd. Off. : 29™ & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center., Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswumm-Rajajinqgar, Bangalore 560 055

Third Annual General Meeting on Monday, 12" August, 2019 at 11.30 a.m.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

CLID/ Folio No.
DPID. : No. of Shares held:

I certify that I am a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered Shareholder of the Company. T
hereby record my presence at the Third Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Menday,
12th August, 2019 at 11.30 a.m. at the Board Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway
Campus, 26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 055

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member / Proxy
(in Block Letters )

Notes: A member/proxy wishing to attend the meeting must fill up this Attendance Slip and hand it over
at the entrance. If you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete the proxy form below and deposit it at
the Company's Registered Office atleast 48 hours before the meeting.

BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LTD.
CIN: U74999KA2016PLC095986
Regd. Off. : 29™ & 30™ Floor, World Trade Center., Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Ra jajinagar, Bangalore 560 055

Third Annual General Meeting on Monday, 12th August, 2019 at 11.30 a.m.

PROXY FORM
CLID/ Folio No.
DPID. 4
No. of Shares held:
I/ We of in the district of being Member(s) of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited hereby appoint of in the district of
or failing him/her appoint of in the district of

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Third Annual
General Meeting of the Company fo be held on Monday, 12th August, 2019 at 11.30 a.m. at the Board Room,
30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore- 560 055 and at any adjournment thereof.

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member / Proxy

(in Block Letters )

Notes: This proxy form duly completed must be received at the Company's Registered Office at least 48
hours before the meeting.
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BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

e
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) :U74999KA2016PLC095986 =/
Regd. Off.: 29th & 30th Floor, World Trade Center, =/’
Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, —
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 055 BRIGADE

Phone : +91 - 080 - 4137 9200 Fax : +91 - 080 - 2221 0784

BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

We have pleasure in presenting the Third Annual Report on business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
315" March, 2019,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Total Income 20,635 16,947
Total Expenses 22,398 17,474
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and (1,762) (527)
tax
Exceptional Items - (1,055)
Profit/Loss before tax (1,763) (1,582)
Current Tax - -
Deferred tax(credit)/charge (531) (404)
Profit/(Loss) After tax (1,232) (1,178)
Other Comprehensive Income 15 11
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (1,217) (1,167)
Balance in Profit & Loss Account brought (1029) 137.52
forward from previous year
Add: Transfer to Reserves (3019) -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (5264) (1029)

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

Your Company has earned total income of Rs. 20,635 Lakhs for the financial year ended 31
March, 2019 as compared to Rs. 16,947 Lakhs during the previous year ended 31°" March, 2018,
The total comprehensive income/loss for the year ended 31°" March, 2019 was at (Rs. 1,217)
lakhs as compared to (Rs. 1,167) lakhs in the previous year.

The business prospects for the hospitality sector is very bright with the huge influx of tourists
to India every year and your Company has a right mix of hotels and operating efficiently which

is expected to perform better in years to come.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:
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The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited. There are no
subsidiaries / associates during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES & DIVIDEND:

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves or declared any dividend for the year
under review.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, 280,43,000 0.01% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares (OCRPS) of face value Rs. 100/- each at par has been allotted to M/s
Brigade Enterprises Limited, Holding Company.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly,
no amount is outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL:

There has been no change in the Equity Share Capital of the Company during the year.,

However, the company has issued 28043000 0.01% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares (OCRPS) of Rs. 100/- each at par on a preferential basis to M/s Brigade

Enterprises Limited, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement,

DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Debentures. As on date, the
Company does not have any outstanding Debentures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 3 directors of which all are Non-Executive

Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in due compliance of the Companies Act,
2013,

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of Section
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115), Director of the
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Company will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 7 (Seven) times on
the following dates:

Dates on which Board Total Strength of the Board No of Directors
Meetings were Held Present

1" April, 2018 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
2" May, 2018 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
27 July, 2018 3 (Three) 2 (Two)

31°" October, 2018 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
18" December, 2018 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
29™ January, 2019 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
30™ March, 2019 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meetings as per the following
details:

—

Attendance in the
previous Annual
General Meeting

Board meetings
attended in the

Name of the Directors ; 2
financial year

held on 10™
il August, 2018
Mr. M.R. Jaishankar 7 (Seven) Yes
Ms. Nirupa Shankar 6 (Six) Yes
Mr. Vineet Verma 7 (Seven) | Yes

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the members at annual general meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

There is no remuneration paid to any directors and the directors are not entitled for any sitting
fees for attending the meetings of the Board.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 315" March, 2019,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period:;

c¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, Ms. Priti Mishra has been appointed as the Company Secretary
with effect from 15™ April, 2019, Mr. Anand Natrajan as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from 30™ March, 2019 and Mr. Arindam Mukherjee has been appointed as
the Manager of the Company with effect from 30™ March, 2019,

They are the Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company has eighteen employees as on 315" March, 2019. During the year under review, the
Company has not paid any remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel as detailed in note 29
forming part of the standalone financial statements. None of the Directors have received any
remuneration for attending the Board Meetings.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The members of the Company at the First Annual General Meeting held on 20™ September,
2017 approved the appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 101049W/E300004), Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5
years till the conclusion of Sixth Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors' Report for the
financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2019 which require any explanation from
the Board of Directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions undertaken during the financial year 2018-19 as detailed in the
notes to accounts of the financial Statements which have been carried out at arm's length basis
and in the normal course of business.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

In terms of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return of the Company for the
financial year 2018-19 in Form No. MGT-9 is appended as Annexure-1 to this Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There were no material changes and commitments for the period under review, which
significantly affects the financial position of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS:
During the financial year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's
operations in the future.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has adequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statements.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors have been entrusted with the responsibility for establishing policies to
monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company.

The business risks identified are reviewed and a detailed action plan to mitigate identified risks
is drawn up and its implementation monitored. The key risks and mitigation actions will also be
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a periodic basis.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company as
on 315" March, 2019,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company is engaged in service sector and has limited energy consumption requirements.
However, the company is focusing on optimisation of its energy consumption levels,

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: NIL
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the year under review, the Company has total foreign earnings of Rs. 45,4492 664/- and
foreign outgoings of Rs. 11,09,22,995/-.

HUMAN RESOURCES:
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There are eighteen employees on the rolls of the Company at present.

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the Holding Company has framed a policy for Prevention of Sexual
Harassment in the organization. The policy is applicable for all Companies in the Group. The
"Complaints Redressal Committee" for prevention and redressal of complaints on sexual
harassment of women at work place in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.
During the period under review, there were no such instances reported in the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to all the stakeholders for their

continued support and patronage. We look forward to your support and co-operation as the
Company is entering the next league of growth.

By Order of the Board
For Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

-

Vineet A

Director
DIN: 06362115 DEN: 02750342

Date: 23" April, 2019
Place: Bangalore
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Bengaluru

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on
31% March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; *

BHVL/2018-19 1




(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to

)

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;*

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)-- *

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; *

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; ¢

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; *

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; *

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; *

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; *

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and*

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998*

(vi) Other Laws as are applicable to Hospitality Industry:-

aHZE.
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I. Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006; Food Safety and Standard Rules, 2011; The
Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954; Legal Metrology Act, 2009
2. State Laws such as Shops and Establishment Act, Municipal Laws, Rules and Procedures

3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,1974

4. Energy Conservation Act, 2001 and other related State laws governing Lifts, Escalators and

Passenger Conveyors.
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[ have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; *

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, mentioned above subject to the following observations:
Registration of charges in respect of property acquired consequent to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by
the National Company Law Tribunal shall be done on registration of conveyance.

My opinion is based on audit evidence, explanations and information given to me during the audit
and the Management Representation Letter in support that there were no specific non-compliances

in respect of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.
I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the ActA

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded

as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,

rules, regulations and guidelines.

BHVL/2018-19 3




I further report that during the audit period the company has:

- Filed the Order of the National Company Law Tribunal approving the Scheme of
Arrangement between the Company and its holding Company, with Registrar of
Companies on 1% April, 2018 (Appointed 1* October, 2016).

- Allotted 280,43,000 0.01% Optionally Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100/- to the
Holding Company on 18" December, 2018, in accordance with the said Scheme of
Arrangement

- Appointed Key Managerial Personnel with effect from 30" March, 2019.

Place : Bengaluru Signature:

Date : 23* April, 2019 Name of Company Secretary in practice: K Rajshekar
FCS No.: 4078
CPNo.: 2468

* These Laws/Rules/Regularions/Guidelines/Standards are nor applicable as the Company is an Unlisted Public Limited
Company.

* Note Applicable as there were no instances referred to in this poinr, during the financial year.
! The Company has obtained ISIN

# The Company does not have any executive directors. There are no independent directors on the Board as there is no
mandatory requirement to appoint them.

BHVL/2018-19 4



To

The Members

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 1 believe that the processes
and practices, 1 followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

4. Where ever required, 1 have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : Bengaluru Signature: A

Date : 23" April, 2019 Name of Company Secretary in practice: K Rajshekar
FCS No.: 4078
CPNo.: 2468

BHVL/2018-19 5



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP R, e Bloak

a No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Chartered Accountants Bengalurd - 560 001, India

y Tel ;: +91 B0 6648 9000
INDEPENDENT AUDRITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures I.imited
Report on the Audit ol the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Siatenment of Profit and L.oss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (*the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conlormily with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial slatements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements® section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ol the financial statements
under che provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Eihics. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company’s Board ol Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other inforination
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtaned in the audit or otherwise appears (o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a malerial misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o
rcport that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is vesponsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a (rue and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles wencrally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
“iudnmems and csllmates that are mammbt dlld prmium' and the desit{n implementalion and maintenance of
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of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ecror.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concer, disclosing. as applicable, matters related 0 going concern and using (he going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Dircctors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's (inancial reporting process.
Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or eyror, and to issue an avditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantce that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise {rom
fraud or error and ave considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on (he basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judginent and maintain professionai
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of inaterial misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due (o
fraud or error, design and perform audil proccdures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecling a material
misstateiment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ervor, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

. Obtain an undersianding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in piace and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s usc of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Coinpany’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a inaterial
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulurc cvents or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concemn.

. Cvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit indings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audil.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other martters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

}. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Govemmment of India in terms of sub-section (I 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

"

(2)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 371, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration far the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA{ Firm Regis&rguion Number: 101049W/E300004

Partner

Membership Number: 209567

Place : Bengaluru
Date: Apnit 23,2019

/PN
&g@d;sh Ranka




ANNEXURFE | TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

To ithe Members of Brigade Hotel Venlures Limited

Report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016
(“the Order”)

(i) (a8) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantilative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during (he year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) According (o the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress are held in the
name of the Company.

(i1) The managemen( has conducted physical verification of inveniory at rcasonable intervals during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(1ii) (3} The Company has granted loans lo one parly covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us, the
ferms and conditions of the loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. having regard to
management’s representation that the loans are given (o such party considering the Company’s economic
interest and long-term wrade relationship with such party.

(b) In respect of the foans granted to parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the loans are repayable as per the contractual terims. As per the contractual terms,
the loans have not fallen due for repayment. Accordingly, there has been no default on the part of the
party to whom the money has been lent,

(¢) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firnis or other parties lisled in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(v) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us, provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the Act in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and in
respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been
complied with by the Company.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Aci and the
Companics (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clausc
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Governinent has not specified maintenance
of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duly of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services rax, ¢ess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authoritics.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, good and services 1ax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a peried of more than six months from the date thev became payable.

7 S5 1) \According to the information and explanations given 1o vs, there are no dues outstanding of incame lax,
-\ sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services (ax, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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(viii)

(ix)

()

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The Company did not have any loans or borrowing from
financial institutions, government or dues to debenture holders.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans (representing loans with a repayment period beyond
36 months) for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any monies by way
of initial public offer/ further public offer (including debt instruments).

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the frue and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations giverr by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions
of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingty reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar
as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
nto any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004

®

T

\per Adarsh Ranka

Partner

Membership Number: 209567

Piace: Bengaluru

.

Date: April 23,2019



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRIGADE HOTEL VENTURES LIMITED

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over (inancial reporting of Brigade Hote! Ventures Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Comipany’s Management is responsible For establishing and maintaining internal (inancia) controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering (he essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountanis of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementaiion and maintenance of adequate intermal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring (he orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errovs, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is (o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial conirols over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial stalements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls Over IFinancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, o the extent applicable to an audil
of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Notc require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated eflectively in all
malerial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and iheir operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding
ol internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due (o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements

A company's intcrnal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasohable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internat financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporing with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro) over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA! Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

A

perAdarsh Ranka
Partner
Membership Number: 209567

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2019



Brigade lotel Ventures Lirsiled
Balnoce Sheet ay al March 31, 2019
(All umovas tn tndlan Rupees Lakbs, except as otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current Assets

Propeny, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Intangible Assess
Financia] Assets
Investnients
Loans
Other no-current fnancia) assets
Deferred (ax assets (net)
Qther non-turrent assets -
Sub tota)

Current Aysets
Invemories
Financial assels
Loars
Trade reccivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank batances ather than cash and cash equivalents
Other current financial assels
Other current assets
Sub coal

Tolal Assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITTES

Equity

Equity shafe capilal

Lastrumenis entirely cquity in nature
Other aquity

Totsl equity

Linb{ities
Non-Curren| Linbiltes
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other son-current (inancizl liabilities
Long term provisions
Other ron cutrent liabilities
Sob tota)

Current Lisbilitles
Financial kabilities
Trade payables
- Total eutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
~ Toral outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
emerprises
Ouher cusrent financisl liabilities
Other current liabilittes
Short term provisions
Sub total

Toutal equity and liabilities

Svmmary of significant accounting polictes

The accompanying noles are an integral pert of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chantered Accountants

=
ICAI Firm registration er: 101049W/E300004

Place: Bengaluru
Date April 23, 2019

Not March 31, 2019 fpech 30, 2018
1 52,985 39,742
4 9,998 12,227
3.2 338 26
$ 11,619 11,619
é 244 409
12 302 R
7 832 356
8 426 831

76,194 65,210
) 332 140
6 37 70
10 1,434 1.845

1.1 840 1,855
12 1,584 123
12 336 (B}
3 1618 559

6,181 4,817
81,575 70,027

3.1 100 100
13.2 28,043 -
14 (2,226) 21,014

15,897 27,114
15 35,877 30,574
16 258 3,209
17 162 9l
13 2600 3372

42,834 36,246
19

2,436 1.946
16 10,267 353
18 1,430 (B
17 111 n

14,244 6,667

82,575 70027
22

For snd on behalf of Lhe board of directors of
igade Hote! Ventures Linited

Vineet Verma

Director
DIN: 066362115 /
194
W
i

Ananda Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengalunu
Dezte: Apnil 23, 2019

Company Secretary
Membership No: 44178



Brigade Rotel Ventures Limited
Siatemonl of profit and lass far Lke year ended Macch 31,2019
(All amouncs in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except a3 ofherwise stated)

Noles Marck 31,2019 March 31,2018

Income
Revenue {rom operatnons 20 20,453 16,646
Other income 21 182 301
Total Income (1) 20,635 16,947
Expenses
Cost of malerials consumed 22 2336 1,719
Employee benefits exponse 23 4,488 3,626
Dep ion and amortizat p 24 3,684 2.943
Financea costs 25 3324 2,632
Other expenses 26 8366 6,554
Total experses (i) 22398 17,474
Loss before excepiional liems 2nd tax {iii)= (i)-(il) (1,763) (527
Exceptional Iiems (iv) 37 - (1,055}
Lass befoce tax (V) = Gii) - {iv) (1,763) (3,582)
Tax expense 1
Current tax -
Delerred tax charge/(credit) (531) {404)
"Total tax expense (vI) (531) _(404)
Loss for the year (vif) = (v} - (v) (1,232) {1,178)
Other comprehensive income
fiems that will not to be reelassified to profit or Joss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gaing/ (Josses) on defined benefit plans 20 15

Inoome tax relating to above (3) 4
Otber comprehensive Income {OCT) (viil) 15 3
“Total comprehensivo income for the year
|Comprising Lass aad OCT for the year] (ix) = (vi) + {visl) 1217 (1,167
Earnings por equiry share 27
Nominal vaiue of shaye Rs.20 (March 31, 2018 : Rs.10)
Basic & Diluted (Rs) (12320) (11731
8 y of significant Lmg polici 22
The accompenying potes are an integral part of the tnd AS financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For S.R_ Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants 7 Brigade Holel Ventures Limited

Vineet v?( hsnaankar
Director
DIN: 06362118 ./~ :

n

r
Membership no.: 209567

Ananda Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 44378
Place: Bengelur Place: Bengatur

Date: April 23, 2019 Date: April 23, 2019



Brigade Hoted Ventures Limited
Statemeni of cash Nlows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All smounis jn Indisn Rupees Lakhs, except a3 olherwise siated)

Jnlu Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018
Cash flows [rom operallag activilies
Profit before tax (1.763) (1,582)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before (ax 10 net cash flows
Depreciation and amoftization expense 3,684 2943
Exporn incentive (155) -
Intercst expense 3,110 2,632
Jnterest income (108) (186)
Operating profit beforo working capital changes 4768 3,807
Movements 1 working capital *
Increase in wrade payables 490 1.053
Increase in other liabilitics 595 2722
Inerzase w provisions " 22
Decrease in inventories 8 -
Decrease in uede recziveble 411 172
Decrsase in loans 198 793
(Increase) 1n other assets (1,197) (172)
Cash generated from operations 5344 8.397
Net cash Moy from used lo operating nctivities {A) 5344 8,397
Cash Nows from (nvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets (11,457) (14,508)
(meluding copital work in progress)
Investment in bank deposits (302) .
Purchase of non current mvesunents (1,459) (1,294)
Interest received 97 180
Net cash Now used Ir investing activliles (B) (13,121) (16,020)
Cash fows lrom Minzncing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 13,563 13,561
Repayment of Borrowings (3,372) (2,337)
Interest paid (3.422) (2,832)
Net cash flow from financing activliles {C) T 6,771 8,492
Nes ncrease 1n ¢ush and cash equivelenis{A+ B+ C) (1.006) 969
Cash and cash cquivalents et the beginniog of the year 1,846 877
Cash and cash equivatents a¢ the end of the yenr 11.1 840 1,846
Components of cash and ¢ash equivalenls
Cash on haad 21 1,841
With banks:
- on current accounts 8(9 14
Less: book overdrafi ~ )
Total cash and cash equivatents as per cash flow 3talement 840 1,846
Q yo“ Iw- 11 t B M g p (TS 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financisl statements,

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants S igade Hotel Venawes Limited V' a
{iber: 101049W/E300004 f
» |
P . g |
== »9) Y A
= Vineet V. Nirgpa .
Duetor / Diretlor
Membership vo.: 209567 DIN: 06362115 DIN: 02
r
Vd
Anenda Natarajan Priti Mishra
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membersiip No; 44378

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengahuru
Dote: April 23, 2019 Date: Aprid 23, 2019



Brizade Molel Ventures Limited
Stalement of chanzes In eguity for the year ended March 31, 1019
(All amounts In 1pdinn Rupees Lukhs. except a3 aiberwise siated)

A. Eguity share capltaf
Lsseed, subscribed aod fally paid-up share capisal Na. of Rein
shares latchy
—nlakhe) 00

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each:

As ¢ April 01,2017 10 100

Changes during the vear - .

As st March 31,2018 10 100

Changes during the year - .

Ay at March 31, 2019 10 100
B. Instruments endrely canily in nature
Opitionzlly Convertible Redeemable Prcference Shares of Rs.100/- each COCRPS?) No. of Rs, in

shares lakhy
— findaphsy 0000

As ¢ April 01,1017 N N

Changes dunng the year - .

As at Morch 31, 2019 . -

Changes during the year (refer nole 37) 280 28,043

As at March 31, 20(9 280 28,043
C. Other equiry*

Capital Suspense Retntned Toiat
Aceomnli earningy

As al April 01,2017 18.04) 133 28,181
Loss for the yenr - (1,178) (1.178)
Other coraprehensive inoome ™™ - 1 11
As al March 31, 2018 28043 (14125} 270148
Loss far the year - {1.232) 11.232)
QOther comprehensive income** -~ 15 s
As al March 31,2018 28,043 2246} 25,797
Seul of purch 1derstion by way of:
 atoimen of OCRPS (refer natz 37) (28,043) - {28,04))
Az s Mareh 31, 2019 - 02.246) (28

* Also cefer note 14
eains/(losses) of defined benefit plans (ne2 of tax) 6f Rs.1§ Lakhs (March 31, 2018: R L

** As required under Ind AS compliani Schedulg 1, the Compeny has recognised re-

lskhs] & part of retained eamings.

Summary of significunt accounting poticies 2
The secompanying notes are an integral pan of the Ind AS financial sotements

A3 per ouc repott of swan date

For S.R. Baliboi & Associates LLP
Chanered Atooumianis
1CAl Firm registrati

e
finber: 101048W/E300004

\For and on bohalf of the board of directors fr
igade eomures Liited /| / _.{:‘
/ ‘/‘r\ \

Vineet Vi Nimpa\sr.lpku '
Director Directoy
v DIN: oz‘qséxgz /

DIN: 06362115
}J'/ W/ #*

Membership no.: 209567

Anamds Natarojan Priti Mishra
Chief Financial Officer Company Sacretary
Membership No: 44378
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengahiny

Date Aprit 23, 2019 Date: Aprit 23, 2019
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Brigade lole! Ven(ures Limited
Noles (o Ind AS Financial Stnfements for the yenr ended March 31,2019
(AU nmounts in Ladlan Rupees Lakhs, excepl as olherwise siated)

5 Invesiments
Non-cwrrent

Investments carried al cost

Imvestment in equiy mstruments uf other companies
2.02 lakhs (March 31, 2018, 2 02 Jakhs) Equicy shares of Rs 10/- each Fully paid up in SRP
Prosperita Hotc| Ventures Limited

Investmen) tn preference shares of subsidiariey
32.44 lukhs (March 31, 2018. 32.44 [aklis) 0.01% A Series Compulsory Converlible Preference
shares of Rs 100/- each fully paid up in SRP Prospenta Hote! Ventures Limited

Tolal Tnvestments

a) Agpregle amount of quoted investments actively traded and market value theteof
b) Aggregate amount of ethes investments

6 Lannx

(Unsceured, considered gaod)

Loans to employees
Loans to related parties ( refer note 30)
Sscutity deposit

7 Income (ax
1) Deferved Tax

Doferred tax Linbilllics
Fixed asscts - Impact of depreciation
Gross delerred tax linbDitles

Deferred fax assecs
Unused tax losses

Impact of expendinire charged to the statement of profit and foss in the current year but allowed f{ar

(A% purposes In subsequent years

Gross deferred Igx avsels
Net delerred (ax (lMabilities) Assel
b) Tax expense

Curreul tax

Current incoma tax charge
Delerred tax charge/(credit)

Relaung to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profic or logs

Deferred tax relaied (o items recogmised in OCI
Income (ax charge/(credit) relating (o 1tems recognised in OCH
Tax cxpense reported in the Olier comprehensive income

;lL}J

tBeng-aluru o |

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
8375 8,375
3,244 3,244
11,619 11,619
11.619 11,619
Non-curreut Current
March 34,2019 March 34,2018 March 31, 2015 Mzreh 31, 2018
- - 2 70
100 303 - .
144 106 35 -
244 409 37 70

March 31,2019

March 34, 2018

650 837
650 837
387 429
645 764
1,532 1,193
§82 356

Maorch 31,2009

March 31,2018

(531) (404)
(531) (404)
(5) 4)
[Q] (4)




Brignde Jote) Ventures Limited
Notes o Ind AS Financin! Sintements for 1he year ended March 31, 2019
(All amoungs in Indian Rupecy Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notfe:
Reconciliauon of tax expense and the accounting profit multiphed by India’s domesuc tax rate

Mareh 31, 2019 March 3], 2018
Acccuniing profivlass before income tax (1.763) (1,582)
Tax on accounting profivioss at sin(uiory income (ax rafe [26.00%, March 31, 2018: 25.75%] (353) (407)
Tax effect of other items, nel (73) 3
Tax expense reporiad in the Statemeni of profit or loss (531) (404)

Reconciliation of deferred (ax nsxel (net):

Unsecured, considered good

March 31,2019

Mnarch 34, 2018

Opening balance 356 (4%)
Deferred tax (charge)eredit during the year recognised in profit or lass 531 404
Deferred tax (charge)/credit during the period recognised in OC) ) (4)
Others - 4
Closing balance of deferred (nx asset 382 356
8 Other agsels
(Unsecured, considered good) Non-currenl Current
March 33,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advance to suppliers - - 208 38
Batances with statutary / government authonues - 9 1,205 11
Capital advanges 426 522 . -
Prepaid expenses - - 205 140
426 831 1,618 565
9 Inventaries (valued a1 lower of cost and net realisable value)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 20{38
Faod & Bevoruges 301 240
Others 3 100
332 340
10 Trade¢ receivables
Current

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Receivables from oticrs 1,349 750
Receivables from releted parties (refor nole 30) 85 1.055
Trade receivables - credit imparred 8 -
. 1,442 1,845
Impairment Allawance (allowunce for bad and doubttul debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (3) -
Tota) trade receivables 1,434 1,845




Brigade Ilotel Ventures Limited

Noles (0 [ad AS Finnncial Statemen for Uie yesr ended March 31, 2009
{All amouais in [ndian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1.1

1.2

Cash nod ¢ash equivalents

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Balances with banks:

— On current accounts 819 1,341
Cash on hand 21 14

840 1,858

For the purpose of 1he sintement of ¢ash Nows, cash and cash equivalenis comprise (he March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{ollowing:

Balances with banks

- On current nccourits 15 1,841
Cash on hand 21 14
Cash and cash equivalents reporied in balance sheet 340 1,855
Less - Book Overdrafi (note 18) - ®
Cash und cash equivalents teported in cash flow statement 840 1,846
Changes in liabifitics arizing from finnucing aclivities:

Particulars Non-current | Current poriion of Toin!
portion of borrowings
borrowings

Balance as at April 01,2017 19,7112 3,082 22,794

Cash inflows 13,561 - 13,563

(Cash outflows) (2.337) - (2337

Others® (362) 362 -

Balance as at Mnareh 31, 2018 30574 3444 34,018

Cash inflaws 13,565 - 13,568

(Cash cutflows) (3.372) . (33712

Others® (891) 891 -

Balante a3 a¢ March 31, 2019 39,877 4338 44,212

* Others indicate the effect of movement m reclassification of current portion of long-term borrowings to other financial habifities basis the balance repaymeni period,

Baok balances ather thaa ensh and cash equivalents

Non-zurren( Current

Balances with banks
Margm money deposit
- Deposits with remawning maturity of less than 12 months

Less. Margin monoy deposits with hanks disclosed under non-current financial asscts

Other financial assets
(Unsecared, considercd good)

Margin money deposits with banks

Interest accrued and not duc

Recvivable from refated panty (refer nate 30)
Unbilled revenue

Brenk up of financial asses carried at amortsed cost
Invesiments (note 5)
Loars (note &)
Trade receivables (note 10)
Cash and cash equivalenss (note 11.1)

Balances at bank other than cash and cash squivaleats (note 11.2)

Other financial assets (note 12)

March 31,2019 Mnrch 31,2018 March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

302 - - -
_ . 1,584 125
J02 - 1,584 125
302) . . N
. . 1,584 125
Non-current Current

March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

kli7] . - -
- 17 5
. a 208 -
“ . 111 8
301 - 336 13
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018
11,619 11,619
281 479
1,442 1,345
840 1,855
1,584 125
638 [R]
16,404 15,936




Drigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes o [nd AS Fipancial Statements far the year ended Marcl: 31, 2019
(Al nmouats in Indian Runces Lakhs, except as otherwise staled)

13.1

Equity share capicat
Authorised share capital

Equiry shares of R3.10 cacls
Balance ot the beginning of the year
Changes durng the year

Balance nt the end uf the yeur

Issued, subscribed and fully pald- up share enpltal

Equity shores of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year

Bnlance at the end of the yenr

Terms/ vights atiached 10 equity shares

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
No, ta lakls Rs. No. in Inkhs Ra.
90 900 10 100
- - 80 300
90 900 90 900
Akarch 3(, 2019 March 31,2018
No. {n lokhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
10 100 to 160
10 100 10 )00

The Company has only one class of equiry shares having p par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vole per shara, The Company declares and
pays dividend in Indian Rupces. The dividend proposed by Lthe Board of director 15 subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ansiing Annual General meeting,

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distributon of ol preferential
amounts, The distbution wall be in propottion (o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

eg held iding/ ultimaie holding company nnd/ or their subsidiaries/ nssociut.

Brigade Entotpriscs Limitod, the holding company

1,000,000 (March 31, 2018 - {,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 cach

(b) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Brigade Entetprises Limied

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

10 10

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Nas, % holdung

Nos. % holding

10 100%

10 100%




Brigade Hotel Ven(ures Limited
Notes to fnd AS Financial Scatements for the year ended March 31,2019
(AD amounts ip Indian Rupees Lakhs, except ns otherwise stated)

132 Insiruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised share capital March 31,2019 NMarch 31,2018

Ne. In lakhs Rs. No. in Inkhs Rs.
Optionally Converiible Redeemable Preference shares of Rs, 100
each ("OCRPS'):
Balance at the beginning of the yoar 281 28,100 - .
Changes during Lhe year - - 281 28,100
Balance at (he end of the year 281 28,100 281 28,100

1ssued, subscribed and fully pald- up share capital March 31,2019

March 3¢, 2018

No. in lakhs

Rs,

No. la lakhs Rs.
OCRPS of Rs.}00 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year - M
Changes dunog the year 280 28,043
Balance ot the end of (he year 280 28,043

Terms of converlon/ redemption of OCRPS

OCRPS has been issued carrying a coupon of 0.01% (point Zero one per cent) per annum calculated on the facc value of such OCRPS The holder of OCRPS may at any
tume prior Lo the exptry of 20 (rwenty) years exarcise the option o convert the OCRPS to equity shares Each OCRPS sghall be convertibte into 10 (Ten) equity sheres or

lesser number based on the consent of the holder.

The holder has confirmed compulsory conversion of the OCRPS into cquty shares after the ced of 5 (five) years and accardingly OCRPS has been recorded and disclosed

as “Insmuments entirely equity in naturc™.

The holder of OCRPS shall be entilled to voting rights as per the Companies Act, 2013

a} Sh ¢ld hy holding/ uitimnte holding company nnd/ or ¢hel jdiarics/ associate

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company
28,043,000 (March 31, 2018 - Nil) OCRPS of Rs 100 cach

(b) Details of shareholders holding more thom 5% shares in the compnny:

March 31, 219 March 31,2018
280 -
March 31,2019 March 3¢, 2018
Nos, % holding Nos. Y holding

OCRPS af Rs. 100 ench :

Brigade Enterprises Limited 280 100%

. (500




Brignde llotel Ventures Limiled

. Notes to Ind AS Flnancial Statements for the year erded March 31, 2019
(Al amounts in Indinn Rupees Lakhs, except ns otherwlsc siated)

14 Other equity

Share eapital suspense accounl pending alloiment
Ralnnce af the beginning of the year

Sentlement of purchase considersnon by way oft

- allotment of OCRPS (refer note 37)

Bafanee at end of the year (A)

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit/(toss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at the end of the year (B)

Total other equity (A+D)

15 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings

Term loan from banks (seeurcd)

Loans (tom related panties (note 30)

Less: current mawrities - term loans from banks disclosed under

the head “Other current financial liabiluies”

Tolal non-current borrowings

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

28,043 28,043
(2B,043)
- 28,043
(4.029) 138
(1,232) (1.178)
15 11
(2:246) (1,029)
(2,246) 27,014
Effective Interest rate Materity Morch 31,2019 March 3}, 2018
2021-2031 38412 34018
2021 5.800 -
2019-2020 (4.335) (3,434)
39877 30,574

Note 1* Includes term loan from banks securcd by way of assignment of hotel operating cash flows Rs, 22,589 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 24,308 lakhs) and Durther secured by collateral secunty
of underlying land. building and movable property, plant and cquipment The loans carry interest in the range of 8-12% and are vepayable withip 96-120 instalments of upto Rs, 500 lakhs.

Note 2: Includes term loan from banks and working capttal loan from bank by way of mortgage of hotel project propertics and future receivables Rs, 15,823 lakhs (March 31, 2018; Rs. 9710

lakhs), The loans camy interest ratc in the range of 8-12% and arc repayable witlun 12-144 instalments of upto Rs 300 lakhs,




Brigade Hoiel Vencures Limited
Nates to Ind AS Financial Stacements for the yeor ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepl as otherwise stated)

16  Ocher financin! lsbilivies

Non-Current Current
March 31,2019 March 3(, 2018 March 3, 20(9 March 31, 2018
Payable towands purchase of property, plant and equipment N 2,967 5,488 .
nterest pryable to related panies (refes note 30) - . 276
Current maturites of noo Lurrent borrowinyes (refer nate 15) - - 4,338 3.444
Employee benefits payable - 156 82
Interest free deposits from customers . - 3 s
Sccurity deposit reccived 25§ 242 - -
155 3,209 10,267 3,531
17 Provisions Non-Current Current
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for gralutty (refcr note 32) 102 9t 30 14
Provision for leave encashment - 8] $7
102 91 111 71
18 Other Xabflities Non-Current Current
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018  March 31,2019 Mnrch 31, 2018
Advance from customers - - 78 55
Lease equafisation reserve 2,600 2372 - -
Statutory ducs payable - - 1352 1.085
Book overdraft - - - 9
2,600 23712 1430 LLL9
19 Trade payables- Current
March 31,2009 March 31,2018
Trade payables
- Tota) outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises - -
- Tolal outsanding dues of credwtors other than micro enterpnses and small enterprises
- Payable (o related partics (refer note 30) 585 62
- Payable to other partics 1,851 1,884
1,436 1.946

Notc - Based on the informantion available with (he Company, (here are na suppliers who are registerad as micro, small or medium cnterprises under “The Mica, Smell and Medium Patcrprises.

Development Act, 2006 for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

B L ial fippatigh ! D1QYTis
March 31,2019 Afarch 31,2018
Trade payables (notc 19) 2,436 1.946
Botrowings (note 15) 39,877 30,574
Other financial lisbilities (nole 16) 10,522 6,740
52,835 39260




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limiied
Notes (0 Ind AS Financial Statements for Ihe yenr eaded AMarch 31, 2019

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepl ns otherwise sinted)

20

20.

o

20.2

2

12

Revenue from operationy

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from contract with customers.

-Revenue from hespitality services 15,356 14,406
<Income from lease rentals 9313 1,093
A 20,289 15,499

Other operating revenue
-Others 164 1.147
] 164 1,147
(AY(B) 20,453 16,646

Disnggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disoggregation of the Company's rovenue from contracts with customers by uming of transfer of goods of services,

Revenue frum concraces silh customers March 31, 2019
Revenuc recogrised over time 19.356

Coniract balaaces

March 31,2019 April 01, 2018

Trade reccivables 1,434 1,843

Contract assets

- Unbilled revenue 1 8

Contract liabiliies

- Advance from customers 73 55
1,623 1,908

Trade receivables arc generally on credit terms of upto 90 days The decrease in trade reccivables 1s pnmarily on account of improvement in collection period,
Unbilled revenuc pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices has not been rased

Contract liabilities include advance from customers rep ing 4 ion price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations, The outstanding bal of these
accounts inceeased/ decreased primarily on account of deferred revenue pursuant to adopion of Ind AS 115

Other income

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

In(crest income:

Dank deposits 108 186
Others 74 115
182 301

Coust of materinls consumed

March 31, 2015 Mnrch 31, 2018

Inventary at the beginning of the year 340 340
Add Purchascs during the year 2328 1,719
2,668 2,059
Less. Inventory al the end ofthe year (332) (340)
Cost of raw malerials consumed 2,336 1,719

Employec benefits expense

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2048

Salaries and wages 3.882 3,089
Convribution o provident and othur funds . 215 08
Saff welfare expenses 33t 329

4,488 3,626




DBrigade llote) Ventores Limited
Nates 10 Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in [ndian Ruperes Lukhs, excepl as otherwise stated)

24 Depreciaiioo and aniortlzadon expense

Morch 3, 2019 Narch 3L, 2018

Depteciation of property, plant & equipment 3,641 2.929
Amoruzation of intangible assets 43 14
3,684 2543

24 PFinance costs

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Interest
on bank borowings 3,439 2,903
on borowings fom related party (wafer note 30) 306 -
Ohers 214 98
3959 2998
Leys. Interest capitalised (635) (366)
Totat 33 2632

26 Other expenses

Murch 31,2019 March 31,2018

Power and fuel 1445 1.395
Rent 959 471
Repairs to buildings 14t 132
Repatrs 10 machinery 206 184
Repairs others 236 L)}
lisuranee 154 L]
Rates and taxes 427 93
Payment 10 the auditor (refer net below) At 10
Property taxes 549 183
Selling expenses 604 110
Agency commussion 337 222
Sccunty charges 19 5
Provision for bad and doubiful debts [ -
Pre-operative expenses - 315
Tralning and recruitment expenses 87 29
Legal and professional charges 1,184 B69
Piinung and stauonery expensos 78 78
Teavolling & conveyance 470 343
Telephone & other 101 exp 118 108
Misceilaneous axpenses 1,536 1,145
8,566 6,554
(i) Paymaent 1o auditor March 31, 2019 Mnarch 31,2018
As auditor:
Audit fes 1 10




Brigade Hote! Veatures Limlted
Noles to [nd AS Financinl Statements for the year ended Mnrch 31,2019
(All arounts lo Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepl ax otherwise stnted)

27

29

Earnings per share

Basi¢ vamninys per share (EPS) amounts arv vuleulated by dividing the profic for the year uttribotabie to equily holders of the Company by the wesghted average number
of equity sharcs outstanding during the year.

Duuted EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing the profit attributsble to equity holders by the weighted avergge mumber of cquuty shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average nomber of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the duutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The following reflects the in¢orne and shure data used 1n the basic and diluted EPS compulation.

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Profit(Loss) after tax {1,232) (1.178)
Weiahted average number of cquity shares for besic EPS (Neo.) 10 10
Basie/Diluted EPS (123.20) (11781

Note: In accordance with the Indian Accaunting Standard (Ind AS) - 33 Eamings Per Share, specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rilevam
rules issued thercurder, thute are certain class of shares ( OCRPS ) which are anti dilutive and hence the impact of those sccurities has been ignored in the eomputation
of diluted EPS.

C itments nnd contl Jes

a Lenses

Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken land and residential space under lable aod non. {lable operating leases. Thesc leases have life of upto seven years with renewal
option and nclude a clause to enable upward revision of the lease rental on periodical basis, There are no restrictions placed upon e Company by entering into thesc
leases

Particolars Mnrch 31,2019 March 31,2018

Lense remals payments recognised as an expenses in the statement of profit and loss 359 471

Future minimum rentals paysble under non-cascellable operating leases are, as follows-

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Within one year 535 5n2
Afler one year but nol more than five years 2,332 2,250
More than five years 18,339 19,955
22,208 22,717

L. Commitments

(1} At Maceh 31, 2019, the cstimated amount of contract (nut of ¢apital advance) remaining to be executed on czpital account not provided for was Rs.5,954 lakhs
(Morch 31, 2018, Rs 4,228 lakhs)

¢ Contingent liabilities

Perticulars Maceh 31,2019 March 31,2018

Bark guarantee 429 .

Letter of credits 707 795
1,136 795

The Supreme Court of India m a judgment on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 addressed the principle for delermining salary components that form part of
Basic Salary (or individuals below a preseribed salary threshold The Company has evaluated the impact ansing from such judgement and will consider the impaet
wherever applicable on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order Funher, the Company will evaluate need for additionsl provision if any, on teceiving further
¢lanty in s regard.

Unhedged foreign currency exposure Murch 31,2019 March 31,2018

1rade paysble 162 283




Hrigade Hotel Veatures Limited

Nates ¢o Ind AS Figaaciat Saiemenis (or the year ended Murch 3(, 20(9
(Al umounts ia Tndian Rupees J.akhs, except 18 otherwise stated)

0 Related party dixclosure

Names of related parties

. Names of relsted parties and nacure of relationship with the Conpanv

Nature of Relafionship

Abbreviations

Brigade Enterprises Limited

SRP Prosperita Hotol Ventures Limtted
Brgade Hosp:1ality Services Limited
WTC Trades & Projeers Private Limited

BCV Developees Private Limited
Perunpuds Real Esvates Private Linted

Celebrat:ons Catoring and Events LLP

TR N e

Onon Propeny Margement Services Limitsd

Holding company

Subyidiary comparry
Fellow Subsidiary company
Fetlow Subsidsary company
Fellow Subsidiary company
Pellow Subsidiary company
Fellow Subsidiary company
Fellaw Subsidisry

"DEL”
"SRPPHVL"
"BHSL"
mvTC
"DPMSL"
“BCV*
"CCELLP"

I1. Key Managenial Persoune! of the Company:

Directors

Mr. Virieet Vermn

Mr MR Jashinkar
Ms Nirupa Shenkar

1. Addidonal relnted puriies ay per Compmiles Act, 2013 with whor trnnsactions have (aken place during the year:

Chief Financial Officer
Company Sectetary

IV. Related parfy iransactions

Mr. Ananda Natrajan (From March 30, 2019)
Ms. Priti Mishea (From Apnil 15, 2019)

The followiny table provides tho o) amount of ransactions that have been entered into with relnted pures for the relevant finoncial year,

r Particulars Relaled partes March 31,2019 | March 3(,20(8
[Food & beverages sales 13 136
Purchase of property,plant and equipment 618 -
Intarest on borrowings BEL 306
Rent paid 12 -
Loans taken 5300 -
Intorest moome on loans i SRPPHVL b ] -
Loans mnven - Inter corporate doposing 100 .
Pwchase of food 209 101
D
Sale of scnices HL 35 4
BCV 2 .
CCELLP 1 -
Food & b Al
cvampes siles PREPL ] -
OPMSL 1 .
Other income BIPPL 3
E:Qersa cross charpod e 40 _
V. Balance outstanding
Pardcolnrs Relationshi Aarch 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Non-cumrent borrowings 5,800 .
Interest paysble BEL 276 .
Trade recervable . 1,055
Trade pavable 322 -
Non-current Joans 100 103
Other financual asset PHVL 208 .
Trade raceivable 71 .
Tvade pavable BRSL 63 62
BCV 3 .
Trad b
rade receivable PREPL : -
V1. Reimbursement of expenses paid/ received
Year ended Re-imborsement Re-imbursemmen(
pald received
BEL March 31,2019 11 -
March 31,2018 52 27
BHSL March 71, 2019 b3l ]
March 31, 2018 1 -
VII Oiher wansactions:
1 During the year, the Company has issued 280.43 lakhs no. 001% QO Ity C ble Redew

bl Prefercnce shares of Ry 100/~ each to Brigade Interpnises Limited.




Brigade Mate) Ventures Limited
Notes (o Ind AS Fipancial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(All smounts in Indiap Rupees Lakhs, exeept 43 otherwise seied)

31

Financial risk mavagemen(

The Company's principal financial lizbilines are irade and other payables. The main purpose of these financsal lrabilihes is (o finance the Company’s operstions. The
Company’s principal financyal assets inelnde trade, other recevables and cash and cash equivalents that derive direcdy from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit nsk and hiquidity nsk The Company's managemunt oversees the manegertent of these risks and ensures that the
Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropnate policies and procedures and thas financtal risks are identified, measered and managed in accordance
with the Company’s policies and risk objectives

i. Market risk

Market rish is the risk that the fair value of futurc cash flows of a financial instrument wil) fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises nva
types of risk: interest rate risk and other prics risk, such as equity price risk and commodity.

Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the fair value or furwre cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market meerest rates.
The Company 15 not exposed to this risk of changes in market interest rate since the Company does not have any bortowings Therefore the changes in the mterest
rates will not lsave any impact on future cash (lows.

The Company is affeeted by the price volatitity of certain commodilies. The Compeny’s management has developed and enaeted a risk management strategy
regarding commodity price nsk and its mutigation The Company is subjeet to the price nisk variables, which are expécted to vary 1 lme with the provailing market
conditions

Interest rate sensitivity
The following Lables demonsrato the sensitivity (o a reasonably possible change in intcrest rates, with all other variables held constant. The trapect on the entity’s
profit before tax is due o changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabsties.

Pardculors Change in Interest rate Effect of loss

before tnx

March 31,2019 +1% 440
. -1% (440)

March 31, 20)8 +1% 588
-1% (585)

it. Credit risk
Credit nisk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments 1f a counterparty default on its obligatiens The Company's exposure (o credit nsk

arises majorly from trade receivables and other financial assels.

Other financial assets like securicy deposits and bank deposits are mostly with employecs, government bodies and banks and henee, the Company does not expect shy
credit ngk with respect Lo these financial assets.

With respect (o trade receivables, the Company has constituted (eams ta review rade receivables on penodic basss and to take necessary miutigations, whercver
requised. The Copany creates allowance for a)] unsecured ade receivables. At the balance sheet dale, there was no significant concenaation of eredit nsk and
exposure thereon

iii. Liquidity Risk

The Company‘s objective 13 to resintaun a balance berween cantinuity of funding and fluxibibity tuough the use of bank borrowings, The Company believes that the
cash and cash equivalents is sufficient (o meet uts current requirements., accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived.

The break-up af cash and cash equivalents. deposits and investments is Bs below :

Pariliculars Mareh 31, 2089 March 31,2018
Cash and cash equivalents 840 1,855
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 1,584 125

The table betow summanscs the maturity profile of the Group's financiai liabtlities based on contraciual undiscounted payments

Financial Liabilities - Current Maturiry perlod March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Borrowings (includes cumrent mauurities of non current borrowings) Within | year 4,335 3,424
Trade payables Within { year 2,436 1,946
Other financial liabilitics (exctuding current maturities of non Within | year 5932 87

current barrowings)

Financial liabilities - Noo Current
Borrowings Between -5 years 39.877 10574

Other fingnesal liabilies Benween -5 years 255§ 3,209
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Notes to Standalone [nd AS Finaneinl Staientents for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in [ndlan Rupees Lakbs, except as ocherwise stated)
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34

35

Fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilsties {s tncluded at dhe amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willung parties, other than m a foreed or l1gundation sale. Theze have been no transfers beeween levels during the period.

The management assessed that the carryiny values of cash and cash equivalents, trade recesvables, mvesments, loans, rade payables, borrowings
ang other financial assets and hubilities approximate their fair values largely duc to the short-ferm maturiues and are repnced frequently

Capital management

The Company's objecuves of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the retumn to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares o sell assets W reduce debl The Company manages is cepital soucture and
makes adjustmens n light of chanpes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a geaning ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.
- Bquity includes equity share capital, instnuments entirely equity in nature and alt other equity components ermbutable 1o the aquicy holders
- Net debl includes borrowings (long termt and shon-term ) trade payables and other financisl liabilities, less cash ang cash equivalents

March 31,20)9 | March 31,2018
Borrowings (non current}) 39,877 30,574
Trade payubles 2436 1,947
Other finaneial Jiabilivtes (cwrrent and non~current) 10,522 6,740
Less. Cash nnd Bork balanecs {2,424) (1.980)
Net Debt (A} 50,411 17281
Equity share capital 100 100
Insguments entirely equity in nature 28,043 -
Other equily (2.246) 27,013
Equity (B) 25,897 27,113
Equity plus ne( delst (C=A+B) 76,308 64,394
Gearing ratla (D= A /C) 6% 58%

In arder 10 achieve the objective of maximize shareholders value, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure that it
meets {inancial covenants amtached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital stucture requirements. Any significant breach in meeting
the financial covenants would allow the bank to call borrowings There have been no breaches in the {inancial ¢o of gbo joned inte
bearing borrowing,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital dunng the current and previous years.

Segment Reporting

The Company’s business activity falls within a single reportable segment, 1.e., Hospitaliry. Hence, there are no additional disclosures (o be provided
under Ind-AS 108 — Segment information with respect (o the smgle reportable segment, other than thase atready provided In financial statements

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company’s current and non-current assets are located in India.
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36  Standards issuad but not yet effective

The standards issucd, bt nat yot affective up to the date of i of the Company’s finatcial are discoscd below. The Company intends (0 adopt these standeds
when they bacome effeciive

Tnd AS 116 - Leases

Ing AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA an March 30, 2019 aad v reptaces Ind AS 17 Leascs, including appendioes (hereto. Lnd AS 116 is effective for annual periods bagimning on or after
April 0L, 2019 Ind AS 116 seis out the principles for dhe Tecogniv p jon ond disch of leases and requires lessees 10 aocount for alf lcases under a single on-
balance sheel made! similar 10 the accounting for finnnoe leases under Ind AS 17, The standard includes rwo H plions for lessens — lanses of ‘low-value’ agsets (.., parsonal
computers) and short-lerm leses (3¢, leascs with a leass term of 12 months or less). At the commencement dais of a lease, & fessee will recognise a lizbility 16 make lease payments (i.2., the
Icase fiabilicy) and an osset representing (se right 10 use the underlying asset dusing (he lesse term (i.a, the right-ofuse asset), Lessees will be required to separafel] gnise the interest
expense on the kease hability and the depreciation expense on dhe right-ofuse asset

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease bty upon this sccurrence of cartain events (e., 3 chango in the lease lerm, a change in fulte lease payments resuiting from ¢ change
in an index of reto used to detenuine those pryuvems). The lesses will generally recopnise the amount of the remeasuremen of the fease liability 25 an adjusiment 1o the right-of-use assct,
Lessof accounting undet [nd AS 116 is subsmntially imnchanged from today's accounting winder Ind AS 17, Lessors will continue fo classify afl leases using tho same classiflcason prmarple as
in Ind AS 17 and distinguish betwecn two types of lepses: operating and fnance leases.

The company niends 10 adopt diese standards from April 01, 2019,

37 Scheme of Arraneement

The Scheme of A t b the Company and ils Holding Company and their respectivo shareholders and creditors in teewus of the provisions of Seciions 2130 o 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013 1o @ansfer the hotel business undertekings to the Company (hereinter referred to as “the Scheme™) has been approved by Natwonel Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
in Masch 2018 with an eppointed date of Oclober 01, 2016, The Scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Kamataka on April 01, 2018,

The purchase considerauion under the schame has been paid by way of 1ssue of 280,43 Takbs Opuonally Convertible Redeemable Pref Shares COCRPS") of Rs. 100 each amounting 1o
Ras. 28,043 Jakhs

The Company has provided Rs. Nil (March 31, 2018: Rs 1,055 Jakhs) towards estimated stamp dury expense wowards the scheate, which has been provided for end disclosed as an
exceptonal itom,

A3 per our repon of even date
Fot SR Batliboi & Assaciates LLP and on behadl of the board of direciars of 1
Chartered Accounants Limited
ICAI Firm registrati r: 101049W/E300004 Ve
i
par Adglsh a Vieeel Ve,
\_ Ppsnfr Diector 7

Membership no.: 209567 DIN: 06362115 : x}/

Ananda Nawarajin Priti Mishra

Chiof Pisanctal Oficer Company Sectstary

Membership No: 44378

Place: Bengalury Plsec: Bengeluro

Daw: Apnl 23, 2019 Date: April 23, 2019




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(ANl amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Brigade Hotel Veniures Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on August 24, 2016. The registered office of the Company
is located at 29" Floor & 30" floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055, The Company is carrying on the business of running and managing hotels.

The Ind AS financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on April 23, 2019.
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}) specified under section 133 of
ihe Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”), read with the Companies (Jndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained jn the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.1 Changes in Accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
except for items disclosed below.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or afiter April 01, 2018,
replaces the requirements of existing revenue recognition standards Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 1. The Company has applied the
modified retrospective approach to al} contracts as at April 01, 2018. The application of Ind AS 115 has no impact on financial
statements of the current year.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recogrized
prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating ¢ycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets tor processing and their realisation in cash ang cash equivalents.
The Company has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and
liabilities into current and non-current.

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the exte:t they are expected to be rzatized/
are contractually repayable within 12 months from the Balance shect date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.
(c) Prop :riy, plaat and enuipment

Propert, plent and cquipn: enzare stated A cest, netof wecun plata] wspresiclion and ascuninty
cost coraprices purchase price, borrowing costs if eapiiclizziion ¢ uCI’m are mot zad dxrvct]y ul
to its wnrking couditor: for the intended vuse. Any tradz diceounts m.a rebates are deduetld 1o
Each part'cf an item of-= ‘operty, plant and equipment with a cost that is mbmucant in relalion to the tota] cost of the item is
depreciated scparately. Thls applies mainly to components for machinery. When srgmf'ca.lt parts of plant and equipmert are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific userul lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection js performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacenment
if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

lu]v cost L ford r,g g Uitlooe 12 Doev.
oI A-;.;f.g al.the purclaz v .,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of
profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

| ¢ 1o mie v ey b hamy T
Borrowmg costs directly attnbutable to acquxsmon of property, plant and equ4pment which taie cubstantial period oftime tasget
ready fer its intended use are also includz=d to the extent they refite to the period till such assets 32 ready ta be put iQ use

Advances paid towards t'ie acquisition ¢ f property, plant 2r:d ccuininent outstatging at eack balaics sheet <late is classiiixd a5
capital ~dvances under other nosi-current ass=ts.

An item of preperty, plant and equipment and any si2nificant pi i tisially receanized is de-: scogized apen mapcc Yoo
no futere econcmic beaefits ace expected from s use or disposal. Any galu or oss arisiaz on ”“—r»coom ion of 1 LSzt

culénlaicd (,S th: diffarence between the net disposal prece:ds ¢ rd the c.arr mryamaunt of G 2a e S ededir Lol
P ] .

statement wicn the Trodery, plant z:nd eq 3 piaent is de-eecgne: 2.

Exsond tare direclly relating (9 ccastrackio1 activity i i 4.12“ N (3 ;v(;',cn.'ill'.n':. Wi Do 3 asiagti

capitalized to the extent 1 which the experditure is Anc.(.\_,lly rilacd 10 C2iiracion oF B3 il Lt el Ol .
expendizure (inehuding borrowing costs) ircurred dirng the consl e peiiad vich s Lol e mslatud (o the it 1l
activity nor is incidental thereto is charged 1o the stat2men” ufpm-t and 10s:.

Casis ¢ asscts not ready for usc at Lae balance shear date arc disclosed under cagital work- ir- progress.
, . . . N ¢ N

@) » Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis usingthe following useful lives estimated by the management; w.rclrarc

equa) to those prescribed under Schedule IT to the Companles Act, 2013: : ’ oL I
Category of Asset < | Useful lives (in years) ‘¢ .-s.. v ' ety
Buildings - v L s - 60
Plant and machinery L5
Electrical instaliation and equlpmem i ‘- T g "0 fred e e o o60ae
Furniture and fixtures ) N 8 ) Cereral e e e,

il W | WLV 1A r S PR Vol - WYYy
Computer hardwarc i . ; . 3
Office equipment 5
| Moter vehicles L : 8

Based cn the slanncd vsage of certain project-specific asse's end technical cveization theroor, iz manage nent has cet’s Ltea
_the useful lives of such classcs of assets as bulow, aad are-depracitcd on straiztiinz vasis: )

IR ARIN YIS TGl STy e ol
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1. Buildings - 25-30years

i1 Furniture and fixtures - 5-8 years

. Office equipment - S years

iv. Plant and Machinery - 15 years

v. Electrical Installation and equipment — 10 years - > C o a I S
vi. Computer hardware — 3 years - - R '

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation ofpropercy, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(® Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separatety are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

[ntangible assets comprising of computer software are amorized on a written down value basis over a period of three years,
which is estimated by the management to be the useful life of the asset.

The residual values, usefill lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized.

(f) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS
109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses
for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit [osses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit {osses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverabje amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is détermined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cwrent macket assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken
into account, {f available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is nsed.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(g) Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Where the Company is lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lcase.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
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the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(h) Borrowing cosls
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All
other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and {oss.

(i) Inventories

Inventories comprising of food, beverages and other items are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories
is determined on a weighted average basis. Inventories which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

€) Revenue recognition
Revenue firom contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for thase goods or services.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any,
as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes
in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises i the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the etfects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing coinponents, noncash ccnsideration, and consideration payalle to
the customer, if any.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services

Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue from room and space rentals, restaurants, banquets and other allied
services, including telecommunication, laundry etc. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and is disclosed
net of allowances.

Income from lease rentals

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease including lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits. Rental income under operating leases having
variable rental income is recognized as per the terms of the contract.

Income from other services
Comnission, management fees and other fees receivable for services rendered are recognized as and when the services are
rendered as per the terms of the contract.
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Inrerest income
Initerest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

(k) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the cwrency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
1) Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
armount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

it) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

iit) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency
monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

0] Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Employee Pension
Fund Schemes are defined contribution schemes (collectively the ‘Schemes’). The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution
due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project
unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance
sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) ate recognized
in other comprehiensive inconte. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and tosses on defined benefit plans recognized
in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 111,
the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to retained earnings.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement
of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does
not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

{m) Income taxes

[ncome tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.
Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
in othet comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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i. Current jncome tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

ii. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabiities are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax relating to itzms recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCJ or directly in

equity.
n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or hon-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.
A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits is reinote.

(o) Segment reporting

The Company’s business activity falls within a single reportable segment, i.e., hospitality. Hence, there are no additional
disclosures to be provided under Ind-AS 108 — Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment, other than
those already provided in financial statements.

{p) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabii ties are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

i Financia! assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
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Vi

vii.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive jncome if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measwed at amortized cost or at fair value
through otler comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPY) on the principa) amount outstanding.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
{EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premjum on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EfR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or Joss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Investment in subsidiaries and associate are carried at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced from the carrying
value.

De-recognition of financial asset
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, [oans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
which is described below.

viii Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financia! liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or lass, Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabitities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

[nterest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fajr value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

——existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification js treated as the derecognition of the original
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liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

xi  Fair value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets ang liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(@ Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares,

) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the cate of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

The key judgment, estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgments and assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflecled in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefif plans — Gratuity
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The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These jnclude the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘"EIR’) method. The computation
of amortized cost is sensitive o the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life
of the financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets

The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation
made by the management of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence
of the asset. Due to the judgments involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual nsage
in future period.

Evaluation of control, joint control or significant influence by the Company over its investee entities for disclosure

Judgment is involved in determining whether the Company has controf over an investee entity by assessing the Company’s
exposure/rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and its ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee entity. The Company considers all facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee entity
and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
elements of control. In assessing whether the Company has joint control over an investee the Company assesses whether
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Further, in assessing whether
Company has significant influence over an investee, the Company assesses whether it has the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not in control or joint contro! of those policies.

Provision for litigations and contingencies

Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present obligation
arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic benefits,
which involves judgments around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of the abligation amount.
Due to judgments involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future periods
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